

11/19/2015

Page 1

CITY OF DETROIT
BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

RE: Regular Meeting

_____ /

Page 1 - 30

Proceedings held in the above-entitled matter
Taken at 1301 Third Street
Detroit, Michigan,
Commencing at 3:00 p.m.,
Thursday, November 19, 2015,
Before Melinda R. Womack, CSR3611.

APPEARANCES:

WILLIE BELL - Vice Chairperson
ELIZABETH BROOKS - Appointed
REGINALD CRAWFORD - Appointed
CONRAD MALLETT, JR. - Appointed
RICHARD SHELBY - District 1
DONNELL R. WHITE - Appointed
WILLIE E. Burton - District 5
RICARDO R. MOORE - District 7
BISHOP EDGAR VANN - Appointed/District 2

ALSO PRESENT:

Ms. Pamela Davis-Drake, Chief Investigator
Ms. Linda Bernard, attorney to the Board.
Mr. Robert Brown, Administrative Assistant
Sergeant Alan Quinn

1 Detroit, Michigan

2 Thursday, November 19, 2015

3 About 3:00 p.m.

4 VICE-CHAIRMAN BELL: I want to say good
5 afternoon again and welcome to the afternoon meeting of
6 the Board of Police Commission. I am your vice-chair,
7 Willie Bell, from District 4 and it's good to see all
8 your smiling faces here this afternoon. And our Chair
9 has an excused absence, Lisa Carter. She sends her
10 regrets but she had business to attend to.

11 I'm going to ask our very own Bishop Vann to
12 open up with the invocation, please.

13 (Invocation given)

14 VICE-CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you Bishop Vann.
15 I'm going to ask our board secretary George Anthony to
16 conduct roll call, please.

17 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
18 George Anthony, Secretary to the Board. Commission
19 Elizabeth Brooks?

20 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Here.

21 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Willie E.
22 Burton?

23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Present.

24 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commission Eva Garza
25 Dewaelsche has asked to be excused. Commissioner

1 Conrad Mallett, Jr.?

2 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Here.

3 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Ricard R.
4 Moore?

5 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Present.

6 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Richard
7 Shelby?

8 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Present.

9 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner and Bishop
10 Edgar Vann, II?

11 COMMISSIONER VANN: Present.

12 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Donnell
13 White. Mr. Chair, you have a quorum.

14 VICE-CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir. I see
15 no one is sitting in the Chief's chair at this time, so
16 I'll move right along to ask Mr. Anthony if he'll do
17 the staff of the Commissioner, please.

18 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, sir. We have
19 present Ms. Pamela Davis-Drake, our Chief Investigator
20 seated in front. Ms. Linda Bernard, who is our
21 attorney to the Board. Mr. Robert Brown, our
22 Administrative Assistant to my right. Sergeant Alan
23 Quinn is recording our proceedings in the back and Ms.
24 Mindy Womack from Hanson Court Reporting Service is
25 taking the transcript. That completes the

1 introduction, sir.

2 VICE-CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir. And I
3 see seated to my extreme left sitting in for Chief
4 Craig is assistant Chief James White. Good to see you.

5 A.C. WHITE: Afternoon everyone.

6 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir, for
7 your attendance. And Assistant Chief White, you want
8 to introduce any staff members or DPD members at this
9 time?

10 A.C. WHITE: Yes. We have our Labor
11 Director. Sir, could you state your name again because
12 I always for get your last name.

13 MR. VALLIE: Rodney Vallie, Manager for
14 Labor.

15 A.C. WHITE: Thank you for being here.
16 Lieutenant Murpheson on my staff runs secretary
17 employment and you also run planning and accreditation.
18 And then we have Commander Commander Simms behind him,
19 professional standards, and that's it.

20 CHAIRMAN NELSON: Thank you, sir. At this
21 time, the Chair will entertain a motion to approve the
22 agenda for this evening's meeting.

23 COMMISSIONER VANN: So moved, Mr. Chair.

24 COMMISSIONER: Second.

25 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's properly moved

1 and supported. Ready for discussion? Those in favor
2 aye?

3 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

4 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed? The
5 motion carries. The next item of business would be the
6 approval of the minutes from Thursday, November 12th,
7 2015. And you received the minutes prior to and also
8 in your package. What is your pleasure for approving
9 the minutes?

10 COMMISSIONER: So moved.

11 COMMISSIONER: Support.

12 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been moved and
13 supported. Those in favor aye?

14 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

15 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Discussion? I should
16 have said that before. Nays? Motion carries. Thank
17 you.

18 And the Chair is not here to report, but I
19 just want to share this with the Board that on December
20 the 10th at our Community meeting that we had a brief
21 conversation upstairs with the Board Secretary Linda
22 Bernard, and on that date we will be receiving our duly
23 charted power back so that was a community meeting at
24 6:30. So I think we should entertain, have some type
25 of light reception afterwards or whatever's

1 appropriate.

2 We had an opportunity to meet with the mayor
3 a week ago. He indicated after we made a request that
4 he should be attending one of our meetings, and that
5 might be one of the meetings that we might want to
6 invite him to if the schedule's not conflicted. Also
7 any other council members, especially Council President
8 Brenda Jones and Councilwoman Mary Sheffield had an
9 opportunity to interact with them last night Councilman
10 Cushinberry. So I think we should extend an invitation
11 to any other past commission, etcetera. In other
12 words, if the Board of Secretary and Linda Bernard, of
13 course with the Chair would work that up and come up
14 with some recommendation, I think that would be
15 appropriate so I just want to throw those feelers out
16 now so you can plan your schedule accordingly in terms
17 of that historic date in terms of December 10 at 6:30
18 on Linden. And that should be very convenient for
19 Commisioner Mallett, since he's a west-sider

20 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Yes, sir.

21 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. At this
22 time, I would like to mention one other item that we
23 didn't mention that we met the mayor that I asked about
24 the annual report and he had a chance to read it and he
25 said yes, he hadn't read it thoroughly, but he was

1 highly impressed as to who worked it up, and I gave
2 credit to our Board Secretary, George Anthony. He was
3 very impressed with our annual report and to receive
4 that. So I just want to give a proper acknowledgement
5 at this time. I don't think we mentioned that before
6 that he was pleased and hopefully we can do the same
7 thing in 2015 in terms of annual report in a timely
8 manner.

9 So on that note, at this time, I would ask
10 your Chief Investigator Pamela Davis-Drake to come
11 forward with with OCI monthly update.

12 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: Thank you, Mr. Vice-Chair
13 and good afternoon, Board.

14 COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.

15 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: All right. Our statistics
16 for today, Thursday, November 19th are as follows: We
17 currently have 184 cases on record. We have 23 cases
18 that have either been submitted to myself or to a
19 supervising investigator for review and we have no
20 cases that have been submitted over 90 days.

21 The number of complaints for October 2015 are
22 as follows. We had a total of 88 cases during that
23 month that were submitted, 103 last year at this time.
24 So that represents 15% decrease in the number of cases
25 from last years. And just a point of reference, they

1 continue to decrease. The overall cases there is a 15%
2 decrease in the overall number of cases.

3 At the end of October, the Office of the
4 Chief Investigator had 212 open cases, 950 cases were
5 filed, and 930 cases were closed. Those are overall
6 numbers.

7 Of the 88 cases filed in on October 2015, 34%
8 involved unknown officers. The alleged known officers
9 involved leading in complaints were the 8th precinct
10 and at 8%, the 9th precinct at 7%, and the 6th precinct
11 at 6%.

12 The 88 cases filed in October 2015 involved
13 157 allegations where the leading area for concern were
14 procedure at 29% demeanor at 24%, service at 14% and
15 property at 10%. Just point of fact, procedure and
16 demeanor have always been at the highest number of
17 complaints or allegation.

18 Closed complaints for the year. 98 cases
19 were closed in October 2015 and they involved
20 allegations where the findings were as follows: Not
21 sustained 40%, exonerated at 17%, unfounded at 15% and
22 sustained at 13%. The leading cause of concern in the
23 98 cases were as follows: Procedure 35%, demeanor at
24 30%, service at 12% and force at 7%, and that concludes
25 my statistical report. Are there any questions?

1 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioners?

2 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am, through
3 the Chair, sir. The caseload or workload of the
4 investigators in the distribution of the cases, how's
5 that done, because I read all the citizen complaints
6 that I get and review, and I notice there are certain,
7 I guess you call them teams or something. I get a lot
8 from particular teams. I don't know if that's just by
9 random or whatever, but I was curious about the
10 distribution in terms of the workload. And also, too,
11 the course and number of the investigators that you
12 have.

13 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: We currently have 15
14 investigators. Again, as I stated last time, I
15 provided a report to the Board, I believe that was on
16 the 9th, that we are interviewing and will be
17 interviewing very shortly for the one replacement of
18 one investigator.

19 In answer to your other question about the
20 distribution of cases, it is very fair and impartial.
21 We have a list that are administrative assistant
22 reviews on a regular basis and she just assigns the
23 cases as the names pop up. So it is in order of teams.
24 But each team, we do kind of a round-robin, so each
25 team gets one case and then they go to the next team,

1 that team gets a case and then as follows. So it's
2 very very random and it is very impartial.

3 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. I was
4 just concerned make sure that no one's overworked or
5 underworked.

6 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: No, sir, that is my
7 concern as well.

8 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: The work is getting
9 done.

10 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: Absolutely. The work is
11 getting done and we are fair in the distribution of
12 cases.

13 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. Thank
14 you.

15 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: You're welcome.

16 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any other questions
17 or concerns?

18 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: Thank you.

19 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. I'd like
20 to recognize that Commission Donnell White has joined
21 us about five minutes ago. Thank you for your
22 presence. And also Deputy Chief Washington and also
23 Director of Personnel Gail Oxendine is in the house.
24 Thank you for your presence.

25 Any others that might have -- okay. If not,

1 I guess we move over to Assistant Chief White.

2 A.C. WHITE: Good afternoon. Once again, the
3 Chief had a meeting with the union calls for his
4 attention so he could not make it today.

5 For my report, crime continues to trend in
6 the right direction. It's down across the board.
7 Officers are doing a phenomenal job out in the field.
8 A couple of things of note. As you all are aware, this
9 past week we had an officer from the 9th precinct shot.
10 The officer has been released from the hospital and is
11 recovering at home resting and is doing very well,
12 thank goodness.

13 Also, there's a detective, Detective Danielle
14 Harrison, who is fighting a very courageous battle with
15 cancer, so keep her in your thoughts and prayers,
16 please. She's also home resting comfortably after a
17 recent procedure.

18 My report will be very brief. The 5th
19 precinct we're excited that that's coming on line very
20 soon, 3500 Conor. It is going to be quite the
21 facility. A lot of the, a lot of the efficiencies we
22 want to get in all the precincts are going to be in
23 that particular precinct, particularly the security
24 doors on that precinct will be similar to that that you
25 see at banks. When you come in, you'll go through a

1 scanning system, and that's significant because that
2 allows us to put that officer back on the street who's
3 sole job it is to do that screening process. So that's
4 a win for us. But besides that, the entire facility is
5 state of the art.

6 The work station for the officers computer
7 technology that's going in the building will be a very
8 fine building that the Department will be proud of for
9 years to come. So once we get a firm day on the
10 opening, I'll make sure the Board's aware and can
11 attend the opening for that building.

12 And then lastly, we are still working on
13 identifying a contract. I think our contract was
14 identified, I have to check with GSD for the build-out
15 of Merrill Plaisance, which is the location that the
16 chief investigator will be housed at going forward. So
17 with that, any questions?

18 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Questions? Concerns
19 commission?

20 A.C. WHITE: Okay. That's my report.

21 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir.
22 Standing committee reports? If not, we would move to
23 new business. And Mr. Burton is this new business
24 resolution? Is this something proposed at this time?

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes.

1 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Do the Commission
2 have a copy of it?

3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes.

4 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: So what is your
5 pleasure?

6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I'd like to adopt the
7 resolution by the Board of Police Commissioners to
8 honor the Montford Point Marines Association resolution
9 for the Board of Police Commissioners for their, for
10 their patriotism, service and support to our country.
11 This past couple of weeks the Chair, Lisa Carter, and
12 myself was able to participate in the Marine's 240th
13 birthday and we was able to meet with many of our
14 veterans from across the world. We met with several of
15 them that received the Congressional Gold Metal of
16 Honor. We feel that we as a Board would like to honor
17 our veterans and we was thinking about coming up
18 together with a resolution to honor the Montford Point
19 Marines.

20 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Why don't you address
21 the whereas and where it be resolved, that that might
22 be on the record.

23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Sure. I will do. Be
24 it hereby resolved that the Board of Police
25 Commissioners hereby recognize and salute the Montford

1 Point Marines for their bravery, service and support to
2 our country. It is an honor and a privilege for the
3 Commissioners and all Detroiters to have the Montford
4 Point Marines headquarters and Veterans Center on
5 Woodward Avenue in the City of Detroit. The Montford
6 Point Marines and 161,000 veterans in the City of
7 Detroit also honored to recognize by this resolution.

8 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commission's, what is
9 your pleasure?

10 COMMISSIONER VANN: Mr Chair, I'm very very
11 familiar with the Montford Point Marines. One of the
12 principle gentleman from that group is in my church and
13 I'm very aware of the historical significance of what
14 they've been able to achieve and I'm very very happy to
15 make the motion for the adoption of the resolution.

16 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Vann has
17 made the motion. Support?

18 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Support.

19 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Support. Been
20 properly moved and second. Those in favor aye?

21 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

22 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Discussion? Those
23 opposed? Motion carries. We didn't do it in the
24 proper order, but I think we got to the point. It's
25 approved. That's the bottom line. Any other new

1 business? Any old business? Announcements? There is
2 no meeting for the week of November the 23rd, the 27th
3 due to Thanksgiving recess. Should I read that again?
4 By charter mandate. I need to indicate that. Our next
5 meeting is scheduled for Thursday, December the 3rd at
6 3 p.m. at the Public Safety Headquarters. Our next
7 community meeting is going to be scheduled at the 2nd
8 precinct, I just mentioned that on December 10th at
9 6:30 p.m.

10 So on that note, I just want to I guess need
11 to highlight one other issue that our director of
12 personnel gave you a written response to some of the
13 questions and concerns that you have. I just want to
14 acknowledge that I don't know if you want to elaborate.
15 Commission went ahead and had a copy of it and they
16 have an e-mail copy of it prior to, but I just want to
17 acknowledge that on the record that we received a
18 written response. Do we have any questions or comments
19 in reference to the written directive here? Yes, sir?

20 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
21 Good afternoon, Madam Director.

22 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Good afternoon, sir.

23 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you for the
24 follow-up information. The question I have is with
25 respect to question five where you submitted the

1 numbers as related to the sworn officers.

2 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Yes.

3 COMMISSIONER WHITE: And I know we had also
4 recently hired a number of non-sworn personnel as well
5 and just wanted to ask the question, is that
6 information readily available as well as to the number
7 of residents that were hired that were non-sworn as a
8 well.

9 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Yes, we can provide that
10 information as well.

11 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you.

12 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any other questions,
13 comments?

14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I have a question for
15 HR Director Gail Oxendine. The question that I have is
16 what are, what are the number amount of officers are we
17 looking to hire again for 2016? Have that number been
18 finalized?

19 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: With 2016, sir, are you
20 referencing the fiscal or calendar years?

21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Beginning from 2016 to
22 2017.

23 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Okay. The calendar years
24 of January through December?

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes, ma'am.

1 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: So we currently have --
2 we're looking to fill all the vacancies. That's
3 probably the short answer. And we have over 200
4 vacancies at this time. So that's our goal is to fill
5 all the vacancies with respect to the budget.

6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Okay. And is it true
7 that right now we have 1470 some officers currently
8 right now to date for this month?

9 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: At the rank of police
10 officer, we do have 1478. With respect to total sworn
11 officers, we have 2246.

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you.

13 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: You're welcome.

14 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair.

15 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes.

16 COMMISSIONER MOORE: It was stated in the
17 record that there would be an academy class once a
18 month. Is that true?

19 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: That is our goal. We are
20 struggling to get a class every two months. So we're
21 starting another class on Monday. That's eight weeks
22 from last class that we started and, unfortunately, we
23 only have 17 candidates in that class. So it is
24 difficult to get a number of candidates. Our goal is
25 25 to 30, but we continue to strive and work towards

1 that.

2 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Is there anything the
3 Board can do to assist you in your efforts?

4 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Continue to spread the
5 word that we're hiring. Pass out those little cards
6 that you got. Continue to spread the word that we're
7 hiring.

8 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Brooks?

9 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Police academy. Is our
10 academy free or do the students pay?

11 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: The academy is free.

12 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Thank you.

13 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: If I might add, we
14 have one of the top notch academies and we've been
15 interacting, looking forward to interacting with the I
16 guess the class was scheduled for January. Any other
17 commissioners, once we set a date, we will share that
18 with you in case you want to take an hour block, just
19 speak directly to the academy and they will do
20 something in terms of exchange. Appreciate that.

21 I understand, I looked at your report again,
22 the extensive recruiting effort, you are out there in
23 terms of recruiting.

24 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: We are.

25 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: You cover a broad

1 base and I'll share that all the time in terms of my
2 community activity. I hope other commissioners too is
3 to advocate that we are recruiting and we need good
4 qualified people.

5 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Yes, sir.

6 COMMISSIONER VANN: Mr. Chair, I just wanted
7 to follow up on something I know we discussed before,
8 that you've given us some information on with regard to
9 the attrition that we received from officers having
10 been trained by Detroit, which has a superior training
11 apparatus as we have spoken of, but are there some
12 safeguards in place? I think we alluded to this
13 before, but could you reiterate the safeguards that are
14 in place with regard to the amount of service that an
15 officer must give after they've been -- after they've
16 come to the academy?

17 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: That currently is not in
18 place and there has been an attempt in the past to put
19 those safeguards in place. And there were some legal
20 issues with respect to that. However, the mayor is
21 currently taking another look at that. And doing some
22 research with the law department to determine what
23 safeguards are possible.

24 COMMISSIONER VANN: Okay.

25 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the Chair.

1 Yes, ma'am. And perhaps the attorney could speak to
2 this in terms of those safeguards because I'm very
3 familiar with years ago where there was an attempt to
4 as a matter fact, the current Deputy Mayor was Police
5 Chief at that time when we tried to put some safeguards
6 in place to prevent people from leaving, or if they
7 left, at least reimburse the City of Detroit for the
8 training. At that time, I think it was like 50 to
9 \$100. I know it's much more now today per recruit.

10 I understand about the legality of it, but I
11 think it needs to be taken to another level, perhaps to
12 the state legislature. Maybe I need to talk to my
13 state rep and those of us on the Board perhaps could
14 talk to ours in terms of the State connecting with
15 MCOLES to put something in place because it's not only
16 Detroit and Detroit Police Academy, but all the other
17 academies that exist around the State of Michigan
18 perhaps. And I'm sure these other police chiefs of all
19 these other police departments in the state and even
20 mayors of all these other cities would prefer to have
21 something in place where an individual upon graduation
22 of the academy there's some sort of commitment there,
23 you know, to stay within that, to stay with that police
24 department for two years or something of that nature or
25 reimburse the -- or prorate it, even reimbursement for

1 the training because we -- I mean we've been going
2 through this for years with Detroit. Some people, they
3 walk across and they graduated in one hand, they
4 graduated in the other hand. Two weeks later, they're
5 gone. They're gone to another police department. And
6 there are police departments in this area that tell
7 people go to Detroit. Get your certification. Come
8 see us. So we may need to take it to, you know, on the
9 level of the state and connect with MCOLES. And I will
10 talk to my state rep and try to see if there's anything
11 we can look at in terms of that because we just need a
12 commitment. And I'm sure all the other cities in the
13 state of Michigan do too.

14 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: We'll take it under
15 advisement.

16 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, ma'am.
17 Any other questions or comments?

18 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Just one final comment,
19 Mr. Chairman. I think it ultimately as you well know,
20 Director, a safety issue because we are losing more
21 officers a month than we are gaining. So I just think
22 that all hands need to be on deck and that needs to be
23 a critical cornerstone going forward with the Police
24 Department and recruiting.

25 A.C. WHITE: And I will say in answer to

1 that, you are correct, sir. We are working diligently
2 to get the officers back to the street. As I have
3 alluded to in the past, the director is working at the
4 top of the program to civilian-ize those programs that
5 we can civilian-ize and that's a tough tough task
6 because you have to train and redeploy those officers
7 to the street. We are looking at every hand that we
8 can put on deck and avail them to patrol.

9 COMMISSIONER MOORE: In addition to the
10 recruits.

11 A.C. WHITE: In addition to the recruits.

12 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Director
13 Oxendine. Thank you Assistant Chief.

14 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Thank you.

15 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: With all our
16 concerns.

17 At this time I guess we move to oral
18 communication from the audience. Just please come
19 forward to give your name and you have two minutes and
20 this is your opportunity to speak to the Board.

21 MR. WELLBORN: Afternoon, Board. Bill
22 Wellborn. First of all, I'd like to thank the 11th
23 precinct for the job done last week. You did one heck
24 of a job. And especially to Officer Robinson and
25 Officer Black. They started the whole thing and I gave

1 a little bit of help. It wasn't much, put they really
2 did a good job.

3 I've been asked a couple things to the
4 Assistant Chief. What is the status of the 5th and 7th
5 precinct on the buildings they're going to move into?
6 I know the 5th was suppose to move into the building
7 January, and I understand they haven't moved yet. And
8 I had a lot of people ask me the status of the move.
9 Do you have any information on that?

10 A.C. WHITE: Yes, sir. Through the Chair.
11 The 5th precinct you're correct. We were supposed to
12 move in in September, and again, we were supposed to
13 move in October. There were construction problems and,
14 you know, construction delays that are sometimes
15 unavoidable. So the new date is the first week of
16 December for the 5th.

17 The 7th precinct, we're quite a ways away for
18 a permanent home for number 7. The plan right now is
19 to create a temporary situation for them at 3501 Chene,
20 which is the Old Water Board Building. That's been
21 converted to a police operation. Currently now we have
22 gaming operating out of there. We met about a week ago
23 to secure some funding to do a temporary build-out for
24 temporary home for number 7.

25 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Thank you.

1 Thank you, sir. Any other comments?

2 MS. MORGAN: Hello, people.

3 THE BOARD: Hello.

4 MS. MORGAN: My name is Donna Morgan and I am
5 here on behalf of my sister Dequan Morgan, and I need
6 to know the status of her homicide which occurred on
7 March 17, 2015. I have been speaking with investigator
8 Charles Weaver, and he seems to know nothing as far as
9 the stakeout was concerned with possible people that
10 may know some information.

11 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, Assistant Chief
12 White can probably comment briefly because this is an
13 ongoing investigation, is that correct?

14 MS. MORGAN: Yes.

15 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Assistant Chief
16 White?

17 A.C. WHITE: First of all, my condolences to
18 you and your family. I won't go into specific detail.
19 This is a television recorded program so what I would
20 ask you to do to your right is my sergeant, Sergeant
21 Franklin Hayes. He'll go in the hallway, get some
22 information, provide you with information so you'll be
23 able to get the answers you need.

24 MS. MORGAN: Okay. Thank you. I was sent
25 here by Commissioner Jessica Taylor also.

1 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Yes, sir.

2 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: As a follow-up come
3 back and see us and give us some update too in the
4 future.

5 MS. MORGAN: Sure. Thank you.

6 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any others? If not.

7 MS. SMITH: Good afternoon to the
8 Commissioners and to our dear Chief. I don't know
9 whether committee know -- Bernice Smith, I'm sorry. I
10 don't know whether most of you know about losing a
11 chief that belongs to us. I think it's nice in a way,
12 but then again, all our talents is going to the other
13 side and I really am kind of disappointed because I
14 just knew that they were going to stay at least about
15 ten more years with us and continue to help solve the
16 crime we have along with Chief Craig. But if it's to
17 their advantage and if they think that it's better
18 opportunity for them, I wish them the best, but I'm
19 very heartbroken about the fact that they're going to
20 be gone. We lost one over in Flint. All the good ones
21 seem to be leaving Detroit. I don't know. Maybe it's
22 something that they see somewhere else at the present
23 time, and maybe it's a better advantage for them. But
24 I wish them the best if they do decide to leave us and
25 I'm praying that they have the best opportunity there

1 and I hope the people treat them right there like we
2 treat them here and appreciate the fact that they're
3 good officers and they need to be treated as such.

4 All right. The next thing I want to let you
5 know about. We are having so much crime going on and I
6 do want to recommend to the police department to be
7 careful out here. We're having too many shootings at
8 the police. I don't like it, and I know most of you
9 don't either. But as the Chief has stated, we do not
10 like anyone shooting at the police. I don't like it,
11 and I'm sure all the rest of us that's in this room
12 don't like it. They have risked their lives being on
13 the force and I, again, implore whoever has authority,
14 give them more money. \$14 is not sufficient in my
15 estimation and everybody else for their lives. Their
16 lives mean more than any 14 or any other monies that we
17 can give to them. I just want the public to know that
18 they need more money and I do hope that someone would
19 take the leadership and start whatever to make sure
20 that the police department get more money. I thank you
21 for your time.

22 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the Chair. I
23 just want to expound on that. I guess it's allegedly
24 about some Assistant Chief that may be leaving. I want
25 to say we talked about that commitment earlier with

1 recruits. I think he's well beyond his commitment,
2 probably plus 25 years, I'm sure. So I wish him well
3 if he decides to move on. And I just want to say I
4 have the utmost respect for him. He's one of the
5 greatest persons in the police department.

6 MS. SMITH: I just might move to Ann Arbor.
7 I don't know. My daughter goes to school up there so
8 maybe I'll go up there and stay with her so I can keep
9 an eye on him, make sure they don't mistreat him up
10 there, all right? But anyway, Chief, congratulations.

11 A.C. WHITE: Thank you very much.

12 MS. SMITH: And I appreciate very much that
13 you're going to do a good job and at least I know it,
14 and I appreciate you being with us in this banner time.
15 But take care of yourself when you go up there, all
16 right?

17 A.C. WHITE: Well thank you very much.

18 MS. SMITH: I'll let them know who you are
19 when I get up there.

20 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: I don't know about
21 all of that.

22 MS. SMITH: I've got pull in Ann Arbor

23 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: I'm glad Mother
24 Bernice brought that up. I didn't want to mention that
25 in our meeting that the Chair reported out with the

1 Mayor he mentioned Assistant Chief White. And we had a
2 conversation, can't you make an offer that he would
3 stay? He said no, he wanted to be Chief of Police, and
4 I understand that. And I'm just pleased that an
5 African-American assistant chief or deputy chief, any
6 rank, would have an opportunity to move on to a major
7 city. That hasn't always been the case. And based on
8 my career with the police department, it's always been
9 Highland Park. No disrespect to Highland Park, but
10 those revolving doors at one time, and I know that the
11 late Reggie Turner went on to Cleveland, he went to
12 Flint, but there's a small tracking of African-American
13 opportunity across this country, so I'm pleased they
14 recognize the caliber of James White, Assistant Chief,
15 and I looked at his file extensive background, so I'm
16 happy for him. I know it's a loss for us but it's all
17 about career because he would be a pioneer in terms of
18 going to Ann Arbor, Michigan. I want to say Go Blue
19 but I'm not going to say Go Blue. We have Green and
20 White in the house too. I'm pretty sure as we go
21 forward they'll be more proper protocol for that
22 transition, so I just want to wish you the best at this
23 time. But this is not the end of it in terms of I
24 appreciate your involvement.

25 So if there's no other announcements, no

1 other person come to the mic, the Vice-Chair would
2 entertain a motion for adjournment.

3 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So moved.

4 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support.

5 VICE-CHAIRPERSON BELL: I want to say Happy
6 Thanksgiving in the coming weeks and enjoy the
7 opportunity, and we'll see you afterwards. Thank you
8 for your attendance this afternoon.

9 (The meeting was adjourned at 3:45)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) SS
COUNTY OF OAKLAND)

I, Melinda R. Womack, Certified Shorthand Reporter, a Notary Public in and for the above county and state, do hereby certify that the above deposition was taken before me at the time and place hereinbefore set forth; that the witness was by me first duly sworn to testify to the truth, and nothing but the truth, that the foregoing questions asked and answers made by the witness were duly recorded by me stenographically and reduced to computer transcription; that this is a true, full and correct transcript of my stenographic notes so taken; and that I am not related to, nor of counsel to either party nor interested in the event of this cause.

Melinda R. Womack
Melinda R. Womack, CSR-3611
Notary Public,
Jackson County, Michigan



My Commission expires: 06-22-2018

A
A.C 4:5, 10, 15
 11:2 12:20
 21:25 22:11
 23:10 24:17
 27:11, 17
able 13:12, 13
 14:14 24:23
above-entitled
 1:9
absence 2:9
Absolutely 10:10
academies 18:14
 20:17
academy 17:17
 18:9, 10, 11, 19
 19:16 20:16, 22
accreditation
 4:17
achieve 14:14
acknowledge
 15:14, 17
acknowledgement
 7:4
activity 19:2
add 18:13
addition 22:9, 11
address 13:20
adjourned 29:9
adjournment 29:2
administrative
 1:22 3:22 9:21
adopt 13:6
adoption 14:15
advantage 25:17
 25:23
advisement 21:15
advocate 19:3
African-American
 28:5, 12
afternoon 2:5, 5
 2:8 4:5 7:13
 7:14 11:2
 15:21, 22 22:21
 25:7 29:8
agenda 4:22
ago 6:3 10:21
 20:3 23:22
ahead 15:15
Alan 1:22 3:22
allegation 8:17

allegations 8:13
 8:20
alleged 8:8
allegedly 26:23
allows 12:2
alluded 19:12
 22:3
amount 16:16
 19:14
Ann 27:6, 22
 28:18
announcements
 15:1 28:25
annual 6:24 7:3
 7:7
answer 9:19 17:3
 21:25
answers 24:23
 30:13
Anthony 2:15, 17
 2:18, 21, 24 3:3
 3:6, 9, 12, 16, 18
 7:2
anyway 27:10
apparatus 19:11
APPEARANCES 1:13
Appointed 1:15
 1:16, 16, 17
Appointed/Dis...
 1:19
appreciate 18:20
 26:2 27:12, 14
 28:24
appropriate 6:1
 6:15
approval 5:6
approve 4:21
approved 14:25
approving 5:8
Arbor 27:6, 22
 28:18
area 8:13 21:6
art 12:5
asked 2:25 6:23
 23:3 30:13
assigns 9:22
assist 18:3
assistant 1:22
 3:22 4:4, 7
 9:21 11:1
 22:13 23:4
 24:11, 15 26:24

28:1, 5, 14
Association 13:8
attempt 19:18
 20:3
attend 2:10
 12:11
attendance 4:7
 29:8
attending 6:4
attention 11:4
attorney 1:21
 3:21 20:1
attrition 19:9
audience 22:18
authority 26:13
avail 22:8
available 16:6
Avenue 14:5
aware 11:8 12:10
 14:13
aye 5:2, 3, 13, 14
 14:20, 21

B
back 3:23 5:23
 12:2 22:2 25:3
background 28:15
banks 11:25
banner 27:14
base 19:1
based 28:7
basis 9:22
battle 11:14
Beginning 16:21
behalf 24:5
believe 9:15
Bell 1:15 2:4, 7
 2:14 3:14 4:2
 4:6, 25 5:4, 12
 5:15 6:21 9:1
 10:16, 19 12:18
 12:21 13:1, 4
 13:20 14:8, 16
 14:19, 22 16:12
 17:15 18:8, 13
 18:25 21:16
 22:12, 15 23:25
 24:11, 15 25:1
 25:6 27:20, 23
 29:5
belongs 25:11
Bernard 1:21

3:20 5:22 6:12
Bernice 25:9
 27:24
best 25:18, 24, 25
 28:22
better 25:17, 23
beyond 27:1
Bill 22:21
birthday 13:13
Bishop 1:19 2:11
 2:14 3:9
bit 23:1
Black 22:25
block 18:18
Blue 28:18, 19
board 1:2, 21 2:6
 2:15, 18 3:21
 5:19, 21 6:12
 7:2, 13 9:15
 11:6 13:7, 9, 16
 13:24 18:3
 20:13 22:20, 21
 23:20 24:3
Board's 12:10
bottom 14:25
bravery 14:1
Brenda 6:8
brief 5:20 11:18
briefly 24:12
broad 18:25
Brooks 1:15 2:19
 2:20 14:18
 18:8, 9, 12
brought 27:24
Brown 1:22 3:21
budget 17:5
build-out 12:14
 23:23
building 12:7, 8
 12:11 23:6, 20
buildings 23:5
Burton 1:18 2:22
 2:23 12:23, 25
 13:3, 6, 23
 16:14, 21, 25
 17:6, 12
business 2:10
 5:5 12:23, 23
 15:1, 1

C
C.I 7:12, 15 9:13

10:6,10,15,18
calendar 16:20
 16:23
caliber 28:14
call 2:16 9:7
calls 11:3
cancer 11:15
candidates 17:23
 17:24
cards 18:5
care 27:15
career 28:8,17
careful 26:7
carries 5:5,16
 14:23
Carter 2:9 13:11
case 9:25 10:1
 18:18 28:7
caseload 9:3
cases 7:17,17,20
 7:22,24 8:1,2
 8:4,4,5,7,12
 8:18,23 9:4,20
 9:23 10:12
cause 8:22 30:19
Center 14:4
certain 9:6
CERTIFICATE 30:1
certification
 21:7
Certified 30:7
certify 30:9
chair 2:8,17
 3:13,15 4:21
 4:23 5:18 6:13
 9:3 13:11
 14:10 15:20
 17:14 19:6,25
 23:10 26:22
 27:25
Chairman 4:20
 21:19
Chairperson 1:15
chance 6:24
Charles 24:8
charted 5:23
charter 15:4
check 12:14
Chene 23:19
chief 1:21 3:19
 4:3,4,7 7:10
 8:4 10:22 11:1

11:3 12:16
 20:5 22:13
 23:4 24:11,15
 25:8,11,16
 26:9,24 27:10
 28:1,3,5,5,14
Chief's 3:15
chiefs 20:18
church 14:12
cities 20:20
 21:12
citizen 9:5
city 1:1 14:5,6
 20:7 28:7
civilian-ize
 22:4,5
class 17:17,20
 17:21,22,23
 18:16
Cleveland 28:11
closed 8:5,18,19
come 6:13 7:10
 11:25 12:9
 19:16 21:7
 22:18 25:2
 29:1
comfortably
 11:16
coming 11:19
 13:17 29:6
Commander 4:18
 4:18
Commencing 1:10
comment 21:18
 24:12
comments 15:18
 16:13 21:17
 24:1
Commissioner 6:19
commission 2:6
 2:18,24 6:11
 10:20 12:19
 13:1 15:15
 30:25
Commission's
 14:8
Commissioner
 2:20,21,23,25
 3:2,3,5,6,8,9
 3:11,12,17
 4:23,24 5:10
 5:11 6:20 9:2

10:3,8,13
 12:25 13:3,6
 13:23 14:10,16
 14:18 15:20,23
 16:3,11,14,21
 16:25 17:6,12
 17:14,16 18:2
 18:8,9,12 19:6
 19:24,25 21:18
 22:9 24:25
 25:2 26:22
 29:3,4
commissioners
 1:2 5:3,14
 7:14 9:1 13:7
 13:9,25 14:3
 14:21 18:17
 19:2 25:8
commitment 20:22
 21:12 26:25
 27:1
committee 12:22
 25:9
communication
 22:18
community 5:20
 5:23 15:7 19:2
complaints 7:21
 8:9,17,18 9:5
completes 3:25
computer 12:6
 30:15
concern 8:13,22
 10:7
concerned 10:4
 24:9
concerns 10:17
 12:18 15:13
 22:16
concludes 8:24
condolences
 24:17
conduct 2:16
conflicted 6:6
congratulations
 27:10
Congressional
 13:15
connect 21:9
connecting 20:14
Conor 11:20
Conrad 1:16 3:1

construction
 23:13,14
continue 8:1
 17:25 18:4,6
 25:15
continues 11:5
contract 12:13
 12:13
convenient 6:18
conversation
 5:21 28:2
converted 23:21
copy 13:2 15:15
 15:16
cornerstone
 21:23
correct 22:1
 23:11 24:13
 30:16
council 6:7,7
Councilman 6:9
Councilwoman 6:8
counsel 30:18
country 13:10
 14:2 28:13
county 30:5,8,24
couple 11:8
 13:11 23:3
courageous 11:14
course 6:13 9:11
Court 3:24
cover 18:25
Craig 4:4 25:16
CRAWFORD 1:16
 9:2 10:3,8,13
 19:25 25:2
 26:22
create 23:19
credit 7:2
crime 11:5 25:16
 26:5
critical 21:23
CSR-3611 30:22
CSR3611 1:11
curious 9:9
current 20:4
currently 7:17
 9:13 17:1,7
 19:17,21 23:21
Cushinberry 6:10

D

Danielle 11:13
date 5:22 6:17
 17:8 18:17
 23:15
daughter 27:7
Davis-Drake 1:21
 3:19 7:10,12
 7:15 9:13 10:6
 10:10,15,18
day 12:9
days 7:20
dear 25:8
December 5:19
 6:17 15:5,8
 16:24 23:16
decide 25:24
decides 27:3
deck 21:22 22:8
decrease 7:24
 8:1,2
delays 23:14
demeanor 8:14,16
 8:23
department 12:8
 19:22 20:24
 21:5,24 26:6
 26:20 27:5
 28:8
departments
 20:19 21:6
deposition 30:9
deputy 10:22
 20:4 28:5
Dequan 24:5
detail 24:18
detective 11:13
 11:13
determine 19:22
Detroit 1:1,10
 2:1 14:5,7
 19:10 20:7,16
 20:16 21:2,7
 25:21
Detroiters 14:3
Dewaelsche 2:25
difficult 17:24
diligently 22:1
direction 11:6
directive 15:19
directly 18:19
director 4:11
 10:23 15:11,21

15:22 16:2,9
 16:15,19,23
 17:1,9,13,19
 18:4,11,24
 19:5,17 21:14
 21:20 22:3,12
 22:14
disappointed
 25:13
discussed 19:7
discussion 5:1
 5:15 14:22
disrespect 28:9
distribution 9:4
 9:10,20 10:11
District 1:17,18
 1:18 2:7
doing 11:7,11
 19:21
Donna 24:4
Donnell 1:17
 3:12 10:20
doors 11:24
 28:10
DPD 4:8
due 15:3
duly 5:22 30:11
 30:14

E

E 1:18 2:21
e-mail 15:16
earlier 26:25
Edgar 1:19 3:10
efficiencies
 11:21
effort 18:22
efforts 18:3
eight 17:21
either 7:18 26:9
 30:18
elaborate 15:14
Elizabeth 1:15
 2:19
employment 4:17
enjoy 29:6
entertain 4:21
 5:24 29:2
entire 12:4
especially 6:7
 22:24
estimation 26:15

etcetera 6:11
Eva 2:24
evening's 4:22
event 30:18
everybody 26:15
exchange 18:20
excited 11:19
excused 2:9,25
exist 20:17
exonerated 8:21
expires 30:25
expound 26:23
extend 6:10
extensive 18:22
 28:15
extreme 4:3
eye 27:9

F

faces 2:8
facility 11:21
 12:4
fact 8:15 20:4
 25:19 26:2
fair 9:20 10:11
familiar 14:11
 20:3
family 24:18
far 24:8
favor 5:1,13
 14:20
feel 13:16
feelers 6:15
field 11:7
fighting 11:14
file 28:15
filed 8:5,7,12
fill 17:2,4
final 21:18
finalized 16:18
findings 8:20
fine 12:8
firm 12:9
first 22:22
 23:15 24:17
 30:11
fiscal 16:20
five 10:21 15:25
Flint 25:20
 28:12
follow 19:7
follow-up 15:24

25:2
follows 7:16,22
 8:20,23 10:1
force 8:24 26:13
foregoing 30:13
forth 30:11
forward 7:11
 12:16 18:15
 21:23 22:19
 28:21
Franklin 24:21
free 18:10,11
front 3:20
full 30:16
funding 23:23
future 25:4

G

Gail 10:23 16:15
gaining 21:21
gaming 23:22
Garza 2:24
gentleman 14:12
George 2:15,18
 7:2
getting 10:8,11
give 7:4 19:15
 22:19 25:3
 26:14,17
given 2:13 19:8
glad 27:23
go 9:25 11:25
 21:7 24:18,21
 27:8,15 28:18
 28:19,20
goal 17:4,19,24
goes 27:7
going 2:11,15
 11:20,22 12:7
 12:16 15:7
 21:1,23 23:5
 25:12,14,19
 26:5 27:13
 28:18,19
Gold 13:15
good 2:4,7 4:4
 7:13,14 11:2
 15:21,22 19:3
 23:2 25:7,20
 26:3 27:13
goodness 11:12
graduated 21:3,4

graduation 20:21
 greatest 27:5
 Green 28:19
 group 14:12
 GSD 12:14
 guess 9:7 11:1
 15:10 18:16
 22:17 26:23

H

hallway 24:21
 hand 21:3,4 22:7
 hands 21:22
 Hanson 3:24
 happy 14:14
 28:16 29:5
 Harrison 11:14
 Hayes 24:21
 he'll 3:16 24:21
 headquarters
 14:4 15:6
 heartbroken
 25:19
 heck 22:23
 held 1:9
 Hello 24:2,3
 help 23:1 25:15
 hereinbefore
 30:10
 highest 8:16
 Highland 28:9,9
 highlight 15:11
 highly 7:1
 hire 16:17
 hired 16:4,7
 hiring 18:5,7
 historic 6:17
 historical 14:13
 home 11:11,16
 23:18,24
 homicide 24:6
 honor 13:8,16,16
 13:18 14:2
 honored 14:7
 hope 19:2 26:1
 26:18
 hopefully 7:6
 hospital 11:10
 hour 18:18
 house 10:23
 28:20
 housed 12:16

how's 9:4
 HR 16:15

I

identified 12:14
 identifying
 12:13
 II 3:10
 impartial 9:20
 10:2
 implore 26:13
 impressed 7:1,3
 indicate 15:4
 indicated 6:3
 individual 20:21
 information
 15:24 16:6,10
 19:8 23:9
 24:10,22,22
 interact 6:9
 interacting
 18:15,15
 interested 30:18
 interviewing
 9:16,17
 introduce 4:8
 introduction 4:1
 investigation
 24:13
 investigator
 1:21 3:19 7:10
 7:19 8:4 9:18
 12:16 24:7
 investigators
 9:4,11,14
 invitation 6:10
 invite 6:6
 invocation 2:12
 2:13
 involved 8:8,9
 8:12,19
 involvement
 28:24
 issue 15:11
 21:20
 issues 19:20
 item 5:5 6:22

J

Jackson 30:24
 James 4:4 28:14
 January 16:24

18:16 23:7
 Jessica 24:25
 job 11:7 12:3
 22:23,24 23:2
 27:13
 joined 10:20
 Jones 6:8
 Jr 1:16 3:1

K

keep 11:15 27:8
 kind 9:24 25:13
 knew 25:14
 know 9:8 15:14
 16:3 19:7 20:9
 20:23 21:8,19
 23:6,14 24:6,8
 24:10 25:8,9
 25:10,10,21
 26:5,8,17 27:7
 27:13,18,20
 28:10,16
 known 8:8

L

Labor 4:10,14
 lastly 12:12
 late 28:11
 law 19:22
 leadership 26:19
 leading 8:9,13
 8:22
 leave 25:24
 leaving 20:6
 25:21 26:24
 left 4:3 20:7
 legal 19:19
 legality 20:10
 legislature
 20:12
 level 20:11 21:9
 Lieutenant 4:16
 light 5:25
 Linda 1:21 3:20
 5:21 6:12
 Linden 6:18
 line 11:19 14:25
 Lisa 2:9 13:11
 list 9:21
 little 18:5 23:1
 lives 26:12,15
 26:16

location 12:15
 look 19:21 21:11
 looked 18:21
 28:15
 looking 16:17
 17:2 18:15
 22:7
 losing 21:20
 25:10
 loss 28:16
 lost 25:20
 lot 9:7 11:21,21
 23:8

M

ma'am 9:2 10:3
 10:13 16:25
 20:1 21:16
 Madam 15:21
 major 28:6
 Mallett 1:16 3:1
 3:2 6:19,20
 Manager 4:13
 mandate 15:4
 manner 7:8
 March 24:7
 Marine's 13:12
 Marines 13:8,19
 14:1,4,6,11
 Mary 6:8
 matter 1:9 20:4
 mayor 6:2,23
 19:20 20:4
 28:1
 mayors 20:20
 MCOLES 20:15
 21:9
 mean 21:1 26:16
 meet 6:2 13:13
 meeting 1:5 2:5
 4:22 5:20,23
 11:3 15:2,5,7
 27:25 29:9
 meetings 6:4,5
 Melinda 1:11
 30:7,22
 members 4:8,8
 6:7
 mention 6:22,23
 27:24
 mentioned 7:5
 15:8 28:1

Merrill 12:15
met 6:23 13:14
 23:22
Metal 13:15
mic 29:1
Michigan 1:10
 2:1 20:17
 21:13 28:18
 30:3,24
Mindy 3:24
minutes 5:6,7,9
 10:21 22:19
mistreat 27:9
Monday 17:21
money 26:14,18
 26:20
monies 26:16
Montford 13:8,18
 13:25 14:3,5
 14:11
month 7:23 17:8
 17:18 21:21
monthly 7:11
months 17:20
Moore 1:18 3:4,5
 17:14,16 18:2
 21:18 22:9
 29:3
Morgan 24:2,4,4
 24:5,14,24
 25:5
Mother 27:23
motion 4:21 5:5
 5:16 14:15,17
 14:23 29:2
move 3:16 11:1
 12:22 22:17
 23:5,6,8,12,13
 27:3,6 28:6
moved 4:23,25
 5:10,12 14:20
 23:7 29:3
Murpheson 4:16

N

name 4:11,12
 22:19 24:4
names 9:23
nature 20:24
Nays 5:16
need 15:4,10
 19:3 20:12

21:8,11,22
 24:5,23 26:3
 26:18
needs 20:11
 21:22
NELSON 4:20
new 12:23,23
 14:25 23:15
nice 25:11
night 6:9
non-sworn 16:4,7
Notary 30:1,8,23
notch 18:14
note 7:9 11:8
 15:10
notes 30:17
notice 9:6
November 1:11
 2:2 5:6 7:16
 15:2
number 7:21,24
 8:2,16 9:11
 16:4,6,16,17
 17:24 23:18,24
numbers 8:6 16:1

O

OAKLAND 30:5
occurred 24:6
OCI 7:11
October 7:21 8:3
 8:7,12,19
 23:13
offer 28:2
Office 8:3
officer 11:9,10
 12:2 17:10
 19:15 22:24,25
officers 8:8,8
 11:7 12:6 16:1
 16:16 17:7,11
 19:9 21:21
 22:2,6 26:3
okay 10:25 12:20
 16:23 17:6
 19:24 23:25
 24:24
old 15:1 23:20
once 11:2 12:9
 17:17 18:17
one's 10:4
ones 25:20

ongoing 24:13
open 2:12 8:4
opening 12:10,11
operating 23:22
operation 23:21
opportunity 6:2
 6:9 22:20
 25:18,25 28:6
 28:13 29:7
opposed 5:4
 14:23
oral 22:17
order 9:23 14:24
overall 8:1,2,5
overworked 10:4
Oxendine 10:23
 15:22 16:2,9
 16:15,19,23
 17:1,9,13,19
 18:4,11,24
 19:5,17 21:14
 22:13,14

P

p.m 1:10 2:3
 15:6,9
package 5:8
Page 1:7
Pamela 1:21 3:19
 7:10
Park 28:9,9
participate
 13:12
particular 9:8
 11:23
particularly
 11:23
party 30:18
Pass 18:5
patriotism 13:10
patrol 22:8
pay 18:10
people 19:4 20:6
 21:2,7 23:8
 24:2,9 26:1
permanent 23:18
person 29:1
personnel 10:23
 15:12 16:4
persons 27:5
phenomenal 11:7
pioneer 28:17

place 19:12,14
 19:18,19 20:6
 20:15,21 30:10
Plaisance 12:15
plan 6:16 23:18
planning 4:17
please 2:12,16
 3:17 11:16
 22:18
pleased 7:6 28:4
 28:13
pleasure 5:8
 13:5 14:9
plus 27:2
point 7:25 8:15
 13:8,18 14:1,4
 14:6,11,24
police 1:2 2:6
 13:7,9,24 17:9
 18:9 20:4,16
 20:18,19,23
 21:5,6,23
 23:21 26:6,8
 26:10,20 27:5
 28:3,8
pop 9:23
possible 19:23
 24:9
power 5:23
prayers 11:15
praying 25:25
precinct 8:9,10
 8:10 11:9,19
 11:23,24 15:8
 22:23 23:5,11
 23:17
precincts 11:22
prefer 20:20
presence 10:22
 10:24
present 1:20
 2:23 3:5,8,11
 3:19 25:22
President 6:7
pretty 28:20
prevent 20:6
principle 14:12
prior 5:7 15:16
privilege 14:2
probably 17:3
 24:12 27:2
problems 23:13

procedure 8:14
 8:15,23 11:17
proceedings 1:9
 3:23
process 12:3
professional
 4:19
program 22:4
 24:19
programs 22:4
proper 7:4 14:24
 28:21
properly 4:25
 14:20
property 8:15
proposed 12:24
prorate 20:25
protocol 28:21
proud 12:8
provide 16:9
 24:22
provided 9:15
public 15:6
 26:17 30:8,23
pull 27:22
put 12:2 19:18
 20:5,15 22:8
 23:1

Q

qualified 19:4
question 9:19
 15:24,25 16:5
 16:14,15
questions 8:25
 10:16 12:17,18
 15:13,18 16:12
 21:17 30:13
Quinn 1:22 3:23
quite 11:20
 23:17
quorum 3:13

R

R1:11,17,18 3:3
 30:7,22
random 9:9 10:2
rank 17:9 28:6
read 6:24,25 9:5
 15:3
readily 16:6
Ready 5:1

really 23:1
 25:13
receive 7:3
received 5:7
 13:15 15:17
 19:9
receiving 5:22
reception 5:25
recess 15:3
recognize 10:20
 13:25 14:7
 28:14
recommend 26:6
recommendation
 6:14
record 7:17
 13:22 15:17
 17:17
recorded 24:19
 30:14
recording 3:23
recovering 11:11
recruit 20:9
recruiting 18:22
 18:23 19:3
 21:24
recruits 22:10
 22:11 27:1
redeploy 22:6
reduced 30:15
reference 7:25
 15:19
referencing
 16:20
regard 19:8,14
Reggie 28:11
REGINALD 1:16
regrets 2:10
regular 1:5 9:22
reimburse 20:7
 20:25
reimbursement
 20:25
reiterate 19:13
related 16:1
 30:17
released 11:10
rep 20:13 21:10
replacement 9:17
report 5:18 6:24
 7:3,7 8:25
 9:15 11:5,18

12:20 18:21
reported 27:25
Reporter 30:8
Reporting 3:24
reports 12:22
represents 7:24
request 6:3
research 19:22
residents 16:7
resolution 12:24
 13:7,8,18 14:7
 14:15
resolved 13:21
 13:24
respect 15:25
 17:5,10 19:20
 27:4
response 15:12
 15:18
rest 26:11
resting 11:11,16
review 7:19 9:6
reviews 9:22
revolving 28:10
Ricard 3:3
RICARDO 1:18
Richard 1:17 3:6
right 3:16,22
 7:15 11:6 17:7
 17:8 23:18
 24:20 26:1,4
 27:10,16
risked 26:12
Robert 1:22 3:21
Robinson 22:24
Rodney 4:13
roll 2:16
room 26:11
round-robin 9:24
run 4:17
runs 4:16

S

safeguards 19:12
 19:13,19,23
 20:2,5
safety 15:6
 21:20
salute 13:25
scanning 12:1
schedule 6:16
schedule's 6:6

scheduled 15:5,7
 18:16
school 27:7
screening 12:3
seated 3:20 4:3
second 4:24
 14:20
secretary 2:15
 2:17,18,21,24
 3:3,6,9,12,18
 4:16 5:21 6:12
 7:2
secure 23:23
security 11:23
see 2:7 3:14 4:3
 4:4 11:25 21:8
 21:10 25:3,22
 29:7
sends 2:9
sent 24:24
September 23:12
sergeant 1:22
 3:22 24:20,20
service 3:24
 8:14,24 13:10
 14:1 19:14
set 18:17 30:11
share 5:19 18:17
 19:1
Sheffield 6:8
Shelby 1:17 3:7
 3:8
shooting 26:10
shootings 26:7
short 17:3
Shorthand 30:7
shortly 9:17
shot 11:9
side 25:13
significance
 14:13
significant 12:1
similar 11:24
Simms 4:18
sir 3:14,18 4:1
 4:2,6,11,20
 6:20 9:3 10:6
 12:21 15:19,22
 16:19 19:5
 22:1 23:10
 24:1 25:1
sister 24:5

sitting 3:15 4:3
situation 23:19
small 28:12
smiling 2:8
Smith 25:7,9
 27:6,12,18,22
sole 12:3
solve 25:15
soon 11:20
sorry 25:9
sort 20:22
speak 18:19 20:1
 22:20
speaking 24:7
specific 24:18
spoken 19:11
spread 18:4,6
SS 30:4
staff 3:17 4:8
 4:16
stakeout 24:9
standards 4:19
Standing 12:22
start 26:19
started 17:22
 22:25
starting 17:21
state 4:11 12:5
 20:12,13,14,17
 20:19 21:9,10
 21:13 30:3,9
stated 9:14
 17:16 26:9
station 12:6
statistical 8:25
statistics 7:15
status 23:4,8
 24:6
stay 20:23,23
 25:14 27:8
 28:3
stenographic
 30:16
stenographically
 30:14
street 1:9 12:2
 22:2,7
strive 17:25
struggling 17:20
students 18:10
submitted 7:18
 7:20,23 15:25

sufficient 26:14
superior 19:10
supervising 7:19
support 5:11
 13:10 14:1,17
 14:18,19 29:4
supported 5:1,13
suppose 23:6
supposed 23:11
 23:12
sure 10:4 12:10
 13:23 20:18
 21:12 25:5
 26:11,19 27:2
 27:9 28:20
sustained 8:21
 8:22
sworn 16:1 17:10
 30:11
system 12:1

T

take 18:18 21:8
 21:14 26:19
 27:15
taken 1:9 20:11
 30:10,17
talents 25:12
talk 20:12,14
 21:10
talked 26:25
task 22:5
Taylor 24:25
team 9:24,25,25
 10:1
teams 9:7,8,23
technology 12:7
television 24:19
tell 21:6
temporary 23:19
 23:23,24
ten 25:15
terms 6:16,17
 7:7 9:10 18:20
 18:23 19:1
 20:2,14 21:11
 28:17,23
testify 30:12
thank 2:14,17
 3:14,18 4:2,6
 4:15,20 5:16
 6:21 7:12

10:13,18,19,21
 10:24 11:12
 12:21 15:20,23
 16:11 17:12
 18:12 21:16
 22:12,13,14,22
 23:25 24:1,24
 25:1,5 26:20
 27:11,17 29:7
Thanksgiving
 15:3 29:6
thing 7:7 22:25
 26:4
things 11:8 23:3
think 5:24 6:10
 6:14 7:5 12:13
 14:24 19:12
 20:8,11 21:19
 21:21 25:11,17
 27:1
thinking 13:17
Third 1:9
thoroughly 6:25
thoughts 11:15
throw 6:15
Thursday 1:11
 2:2 5:6 7:16
 15:5
time 3:15 4:9,21
 6:22 7:5,9,23
 9:14 12:24
 17:4 19:1 20:5
 20:8 22:17
 25:23 26:21
 27:14 28:10,23
 30:10
timely 7:7
today 7:16 11:4
 20:9
top 18:14 22:4
total 7:22 17:10
tough 22:5,5
tracking 28:12
train 22:6
trained 19:10
training 19:10
 20:8 21:1
transcript 3:25
 30:16
transcription
 30:15
transition 28:22

treat 26:1,2
treated 26:3
trend 11:5
tried 20:5
true 17:6,18
 30:16
truth 30:12,12
try 21:10
Turner 28:11
two 17:20 20:24
 21:4 22:19
type 5:24

U

ultimately 21:19
unavoidable
 23:15
understand 18:21
 20:10 23:7
 28:4
underworked 10:5
unfortunately
 17:22
unfounded 8:21
union 11:3
unknown 8:8
update 7:11 25:3
upstairs 5:21
utmost 27:4

V

vacancies 17:2,4
 17:5
Vallie 4:13,13
Vann 1:19 2:11
 2:14 3:10,11
 4:23 14:10,16
 19:6,24
veterans 13:14
 13:17 14:4,6
Vice 1:15
vice-chair 2:6
 7:12 29:1
VICE-CHAIRMAN
 2:4,14 3:14
 4:2
VICE-CHAIRPERSON
 4:6,25 5:4,12
 5:15 6:21 9:1
 10:16,19 12:18
 12:21 13:1,4
 13:20 14:8,16

14:19,22 16:12 17:15 18:8,13 18:25 21:16 22:12,15 23:25 24:11,15 25:1 25:6 27:20,23 29:5	27:11,17 28:1 28:14,20 29:4 Willie 1:15,18 2:7,21 win 12:4 wish 25:18,24 27:2 28:22 witness 30:11,14 Womack 1:11 3:24 30:7,22 Woodward 14:5 word 18:5,6 words 6:12 work 6:13 10:8 10:10 12:6 17:25 worked 7:1 working 12:12 22:1,3 workload 9:3,10 world 13:14 written 15:12,18 15:19	1470 17:7 1478 17:10 15 9:13 15% 7:24 8:1,21 157 8:13 161,000 14:6 17 17:23 24:7 17% 8:21 184 7:17 19 1:11 2:2 19th 7:16	6 6% 8:11 6:30 5:24 6:17 15:9 6th 8:10
<hr/> W <hr/> walk 21:3 want 2:4 4:7 5:19 6:5,15 7:4 11:22 15:10,13,14,16 18:18 26:4,6 26:17,23,24 27:3,24 28:18 28:22 29:5 wanted 16:5 19:6 28:3 Washington 10:22 wasn't 23:1 Water 23:20 way 25:11 ways 23:17 we'll 21:14 29:7 we're 11:19 17:2 17:20 18:5,6 23:17 26:7 we've 18:14 21:1 Weaver 24:8 week 6:3 11:9 15:2 22:23 23:15,22 weeks 13:11 17:21 21:4 29:6 welcome 2:5 10:15 17:13 Wellborn 22:21 22:22 went 15:15 28:11 28:11 west-sider 6:19 whatever's 5:25 White 1:17 3:13 4:4,5,7,10,15 10:20 11:1,2 12:20 15:20,23 16:3,11 21:25 22:11 23:10 24:12,16,17	<hr/> X <hr/> <hr/> Y <hr/> year 7:23 8:18 years 7:25 12:9 16:20,23 20:3 20:24 21:2 25:15 27:2	<hr/> 2 <hr/> 2 1:19 200 17:3 2015 1:11 2:2 5:7 7:7,21 8:7 8:12,19 24:7 2016 16:17,19,21 2017 16:22 212 8:4 2246 17:11 23 7:17 23rd 15:2 24% 8:14 240th 13:12 25 17:25 27:2 27th 15:2 29% 8:14 2nd 15:7	<hr/> 7 <hr/> 7 1:18 23:18,24 7% 8:10,24 7th 23:4,17
	<hr/> Z <hr/> <hr/> 0 <hr/> 06-22-2018 30:25	<hr/> 3 <hr/> 3 15:6 3:00 1:10 2:3 3:45 29:9 30 1:7 17:25 30% 8:24 34% 8:7 35% 8:23 3500 11:20 3501 23:19 3rd 15:5	<hr/> 8 <hr/> 8% 8:10 88 7:22 8:7,12 8th 8:9
	<hr/> 1 <hr/> 1 1:7,17 10 6:17 10% 8:15 100 20:9 103 7:23 10th 5:20 15:8 11th 22:22 12% 8:24 12th 5:6 13% 8:22 1301 1:9 14 26:14,16 14% 8:14	<hr/> 4 <hr/> 4 2:7 40% 8:21	<hr/> 9 <hr/> 90 7:20 930 8:5 950 8:4 98 8:18,23 9th 8:10 9:16 11:9
	<hr/> 2 <hr/> 2 1:19 200 17:3 2015 1:11 2:2 5:7 7:7,21 8:7 8:12,19 24:7 2016 16:17,19,21 2017 16:22 212 8:4 2246 17:11 23 7:17 23rd 15:2 24% 8:14 240th 13:12 25 17:25 27:2 27th 15:2 29% 8:14 2nd 15:7	<hr/> 5 <hr/> 5 1:18 50 20:8 5th 11:18 23:4,6 23:11,16	